

Definitely A Normal Theme Park V6

written by
Dayna Keaney

E-mail: keaney-d@ulster.ac.uk

EXT. THEME PARK ENTRANCE - DAY

ESTABLISHING SHOT

THE TITLE IS SHOWN AS THE FRONT GATE LOGO OF THE THEME PARK.

PAN DOWN TO ALIEN BOSS

THE ALIEN BOSS WELCOMES THE CUSTOMERS TO THE THEME PARK.

Commented [DK1]: Footsteps

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

FULL SHOT

THE CUSTOMERS, NORMAL HUMANS AND FAMILIES, START WALKING IN FROM THE LEFT TOWARDS THE RIGHT. THEY ARE ALL EXCITED TO GET INTO THE PARK. IN THE BACKGROUND, KIDS ARE POINTING AND INTERACTING WITH THE STALLS. THEY INCLUDE GAMES, AND PRIZES TO WIN.

Commented [DK2]: Footsteps
People emoting, Ooh's, Ahh's

IN THE MIDGROUND, YOU CAN SEE ALIEN BOSS WALK SPEEDILY ACROSS THE SHOT, BUSY WITH A DEVICE IN THEIR HAND.

IN THE FOREGROUND, A COUPLE ARE TAKING A SELFIE WITH AN ALIEN.

Commented [DK3]: Phone flash sound, taking photo

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

MEDIUM SHOT

ALIEN BOSS IS SHOCKED, THEN TURNS WORRIED LOOKING DOWN AT THEIR DEVICE.

Commented [DK4]: Alien sound - shocked gasp

CLOSE SHOT

THE DEVICE DISPLAYS A MESSAGE THAT SAYS: 'INSPECTOR ARRIVING TODAY! NOW!.'

INT. ROLLER COASTER ENTRANCE - DAY

MEDIUM SHOT

THE ALIEN BOSS SPEEDILY JOGS PAST THE ALIEN OPERATER, WHO WAVES AT THEM. THE ALIEN OPERATOR'S JOB IS TO CHECK IF CUSTOMERS ARE TALL ENOUGH FOR THE RIDE. THE ALIEN LOOKS TO THE GROUND, **CONFUSED AND THINKING SOMETHING OVER.**

Commented [DK5]: Alien sound - Hmmm 1

WIDE SHOT

THE ALIEN IS CONSIDERING IF THE **BABY CRYING** IN FRONT OF THEM SHOULD BE LET IN OR NOT. IN THE BACKGROUND, **TWO PEOPLE SPEEDILY PASS BY IN THE ROLLER COASTER.**

Commented [DK6]: Baby - fake crying

Commented [DK7]: Two men emoting: screams
Roller coaster cart sounds on tracks

INT. THEME PARK RESTAURANT - DAY

CLOSE SHOT

A COUPLE BRING THEIR TRAY OF FOOD TO THEIR TABLE AND SIT DOWN.

Commented [DK8]: Soft noise of tray hitting table

MEDIUM SHOT OF COUPLE

THEY ARE CONCERNED ABOUT THE SHAPE OF THE TABLE THEY HAVE SAT AT, AS IT LOOKS AWFULLY LIKE A TEACUP RIDE.

ONE OF THEM MAKES A SPINNING GESTURE WITH THEIR HAND, **AND THE OTHER LAUGHS.**

Commented [DK9]: Woman giggle

SUDDENLY, TO NO SURPRISE, THE TEACUP TABLES START SPINNING INTENSELY. FOOD TRAYS AND DRINKS ARE FLYING FROM THE TABLE TO THE GROUND.

Commented [DK10]: Spinning teacup Whoosh sound
Tray and drinks hitting ground

INT. POPCORN STAND - DAY

FULL SHOT OF POPCORN STAND

ALIEN COOK IS PREPPING THE **POPCORN BOXES BY TAPING THEM TOGETHER.** THE COOK IS EXCITED TO SERVE POPCORN TO POTENTIAL CUSTOMERS, THROWING THEIR HANDS UP IN THE AIR.

Commented [DK11]: Sticky tape pull, placed on box

HOWEVER, A BIG SHADOW APPEARS. THERE IS SOMEONE MENACING WALKING PAST.
ALIEN COOK IS SPOOKED OUT, FOLLOWING THE SHADOW AS IT PASSES BY.

INT. THEME PARK RESTAURANT - DAY

WIDE SHOT OF RESTAURANT

THE SPINNING TEACUPS ARE STILL SPINNING. THE SAME SHADOW WALKS PAST.

Commented [DK12]: Spinning teacup Whoosh sound

INT. ROLLER COASTER ENTRANCE - DAY

FULL SHOT

THE SHADOWED FIGURE MAKES ITS WAY PAST THE ROLLER COASTER ENTRANCE.
ALIEN OPERATOR PANICS AND RUNS TO THE LEFT, BUT THE BABY STARTS
CRAWLING TOWARDS THE ROLLER COASTER STAIRCASE.

Commented [DK13]: Alien sound - Shocked gasp
Baby emoting - fake crying then stops

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

WORMS EYE VIEW - WIDE ZOOM OUT

FINALLY, WE SEE THE SOURCE OF THE SHADOWS. THE ALIEN INSPECTOR IS
REVEALED. THEY STAND IN A WIDE, DOMINANT POSE WITH HANDS ON HIPS.
ALIEN WORKERS ARE BEHIND ON EACH SIDE OF THE INSPECTOR, SCARED AND
WORRIED ABOUT JUDGEMENT COMING THEIR WAY.

Commented [DK14]: Alien sound - Gasps

EXT. BODY - DAY

EXTREME CLOSE SHOT OF BADGE

THEY REACH FOR THEIR INSPECTOR BADGE AND ADJUSTS IT TO A GOOD
POSITION.

Commented [DK15]: Irrk irrk moving sound

INT. THEME PARK RESTAURANT - DAY

WIDE SHOT

THE INSPECTOR WALKS TOWARDS THE TABLES OF THE RESTAURANT THAT HAVE NOW STOPPED SPINNING. THEY SEE SPLATS OF FOOD AND DRINK ALL OVER THE PLACE, AND DIZZY CUSTOMERS. THE INSPECTOR IS UNIMPRESSED AS THEY PICK UP MUSH OF FOOD ON THEIR FINGER.

Commented [DK16]: People emoting - Ughhh (dizziness)

INT. THEME PARK RESTAURANT - DAY

CLOSE SHOT

THE INSPECTOR IS GROSSED OUT BUT CONTINUES ON. THE INSPECTOR MOVES LEFT TO LOOK TOWARDS THE POPCORN STAND.

Commented [DK17]: Alien sound - Hmmm 2

EXT. POPCORN STAND - DAY

MEDIUM SHOT

ALIEN COOK HANDS OVER A BOX OF POPCORN TO A HUMAN CUSTOMER. HOWEVER, THE TAPE GETS STUCK TO THE COOK'S HANDS, AND WHEN THE CUSTOMER GRABS THE BOX, HIS HANDS STUCK TOO. THEY SWING THE BOX LEFT TO RIGHT TRYING TO PULL THEIR HANDS OFF, BUT TO NO RESULT.

Commented [DK18]: Whoosh sound - box moving quickly

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

CLOSE SHOT

THE INSPECTOR JUDGES, THEN HEARS LAUGHTER FROM A BABY, HIGH UP IN THE AIR, AND LOOKS TO THE RIGHT.

Commented [DK19]: Baby emoting - laughing

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

FAST ZOOM OUT - FULL SHOT

THE INSPECTOR TURNS TO THE RIGHT, LOOKS UP AND IS SHOCKED. THE CAMERA ZOOMS OUT TO THE TOP OF THE ROLLER COASTER DROP. IT IS REVEALED THE BABY HAS GOT ON THE RIDE.

Commented [DK20]: Alien sound - Big gasp, almost shouted

Commented [DK21]: Roller coaster cart sounds on tracks

EXT. ROLLER COASTER DROP - DAY

CLOSE SLOW-MOTION SHOT

THE BABY SMILES THROUGH THE DUMMY IN THEIR MOUTH, AND WAVES MENACINGLY AT THE INSPECTOR.

Commented [DK22]: Baby emoting - evil giggle
Roller coaster cart sounds on tracks

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

CLOSE UP SHOT

THE INSPECTOR LOOKS DOWN DIRECTLY TO THE ALIENS. THE INSPECTOR LOOKS VERY ANGRY NOW.

Commented [DK23]: Alien sound - Grrr (angry)

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

MEDIUM SHOT

THE ALIENS ARE STANDING TOGETHER, WITH ALIEN BOSS IN FRONT. THEY ARE ALL VERY WORRIED ABOUT THE INSPECTOR'S REACTION, ESPECIALLY ALIEN BOSS.

Commented [DK24]: Alien sound - High pitch Aah (worried)

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

CLOSE SHOT

THE INSPECTOR TAKES OUT A LASER GUN. DETAILED ON THE SIDE, THEY SWITCH THE GUN SETTING FROM LOW TO HIGH SETTING.

Commented [DK25]: Laser gun - button switch noise

MEDIUM SHOT

WITHOUT EXPLANATION, THE INSPECTOR AIMS THE LASER GUN TOWARDS ALIEN BOSS, AND SHOOTS.

Commented [DK26]: Laser gun - Alien ray shoot sound

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

CLOSE UP SHOT

THE ALIEN BOSS HIDES THEIR FACE WITH THEIR HANDS. LASER GUN EFFECTS FLY AROUND THEM. IT FADES AND REVEALS A GOLD STAR ON ALIEN BOSS' SHIRT.

Commented [DK27]: Laser gun - Alien ray hit sound

EXT. BODY - DAY

EXTREME CLOSE UP SHOT

THE GOLD STAR, IN DETAIL SAYS 'YOU PASS. COOL PARK'.

Commented [DK28]: Ding sound

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

MEDIUM SHOT

THE INSPECTOR SMILES WITH A THUMBS UP AND LEAVES THE SHOT TOWARDS THE LEFT.

INT. THEME PARK - DAY

WIDE SHOT

THE ALIENS ALL STAND IN THEIR SAME POSITIONS, HAPPY AND CELEBRATING. CONFETTI AND BALLOONS ARE FALLING FROM THE SKY.

Commented [DK29]: Alien sound - clapping and Whoop Hoos

THEN, THE BABY CRAWLS IN. THE BABY LOOKS UP TO ALIEN BOSS, THEN GIVES THEM A THUMBS UP TOO.

Commented [DK30]: Confetti shoot sound

END